1987

Gay Andersen v. Glade C. Andersen : Brief of Appellant

Utah Court of Appeals

JURISDICTION OF COURT

The Decree of Divorce from which this appeal is taken was signed by the court on July 15, 1987, and was entered on July 16, 1987. The Notice of Appeal was filed on August 10, 1987.

This Court has jurisdiction over the appeal in this matter by virtue of the Constitution of Utah, Article VIII, Section 1 et seq., Section 78-2A-1 et seq. Utah Code Ann. (1953 as amended), and Rule 3 R.Utah Ct.App.

NATURE OF PROCEEDINGS

This appeal is from a final Decree of Divorce signed by Judge Omer J. Call of the First Judicial District Court of Cache County, State of Utah.

STATEMENT OF ISSUES PRESENTED FOR REVIEW

1. Whether the court abused its discretion by awarding Gay Andersen only \$300.00 per month alimony and limiting said alimony award to such time as the Court makes a further order or until such time as Gay Andersen completes her schooling, or becomes employed on a full-time basis.

2. Whether the trial court abused its discretion in awarding Appellant Gay Andersen (hereinafter "Gay Andersen") the home only until April 1, 1989, at which time the home was ordered sold and the proceeds divided equally between the parties.

3. Whether the trial court abused its discretion in not specifically valuing the IRA account, there being evidence before the court that the IRA at the time of the parties' separation had in it some \$8,340.76.

4. Whether the trial court abused its discretion by valuing the 1980 Cutlass Oldsmobile at an amount in excess of the evidence before the trial court.

5. Whether the trial court abused its discretion in not requiring Respondent Glade Andersen (hereinafter "Glade Andersen") to maintain certain policies of life insurance and retirement policies with Gay Andersen named as beneficiary thereon.

6. Whether the trial court abused its discretion in not awarding Gay Andersen her reasonable attorney fees and costs incurred in this matter as proffered at trial by stipulation of the parties.

STATEMENT OF THE CASE

NATURE OF THE CASE

This is a divorce case.

COURSE OF PROCEEDINGS

Gay Andersen filed a complaint for divorce on September 26, 1986. An Order to Show Cause was also signed by the court on

September 26, 1986. On October 16, 1986, Glade Andersen filed an Answer and Counterclaim.

On October 27, 1986, a hearing on Gay Andersen's Order to Show Cause was held before Judge VeNoy Christoffersen of the First Judicial District. A Temporary Order was signed by Judge Christoffersen on December 1, 1986 and entered December 3, 1986.

Trial was held on March 13, 1987 before Judge Call. Judge Call signed his Memorandum Decision on May 5, 1987. The Memorandum Decision was entered on May 11, 1987.

The Findings of Fact and Conclusions of Law and Decree of Divorce were signed by Judge Call on July 15, 1987, and were entered July 16, 1987.

Gay Andersen filed this appeal on August 10, 1987.

DISPOSITION AT TRIAL COURT

The Decree of Divorce provided as follows:

The trial court awarded both parties a divorce.

The parties' home was ordered sold on April 1, 1989 and the proceeds divided one-half to each party, Gay Andersen to be entitled to live in the home until April 1, 1989, subject to her paying the taxes and insurance.

The personal property was valued and divided by the Court with Glade Andersen receiving slightly more than Gay Andersen. Each party was awarded:

One-half of the IRA account and
One-half interest in (Glade Andersen's) Pension Plan
from E. A. Miller as and when received in accordance
with the Woodward formula.

Decree of Divorce, numbered paragraph 4.A.

The trial court awarded alimony to Gay Andersen in "the sum of \$300.00 per month until further order of the Court or until such time as (Gay Andersen) completes her schooling or becomes employed on a full-time basis."

The debts were divided between the parties, each party ordered to pay his or her own attorney fees and costs, and Gay Andersen was awarded a \$400.00 judgment against Glade Andersen for temporary alimony left unpaid by Glade Andersen at the date of trial.

STATEMENT OF FACTS

1. Gay Andersen and Glade Andersen were married on July 22, 1953. Married at 17 and 16 years of age respectively, at the time of trial the parties were married nearly 34 years. (Transcript, page 3, lines 19-22; page 4, lines 12-19; page 46, lines 10-18.)

2. During their marriage, the parties had four children. All of the children are now married and live in homes of their own. The youngest of the children was married approximately one and a half years before the trial. At the time of trial, the parties had nine grandchildren, with the tenth on the way. (Transcript, page 3, lines 23-25; page 4, lines 1-11; page 46, lines 10-15.)

3. For all but the first few years of the marriage, Glade Andersen drove trucks. Gay Andersen testified at trial her husband "always made a good wage" and that the parties, though not rich, lived well and did not need to worry. Gay Andersen

testified that except during the first years, when Glade Andersen was gone even more, a typical work week would involve Glade Andersen being gone two or three nights cattle hauling. (Transcript, page 8, lines 17-25; page 9, lines 1-12; page 46, lines 19-20; page 47, lines 1-7.)

4. In 1984 Glade Andersen made \$29,319.60. In 1985 his income was \$28,189.20. His 1986 income was approximately \$28,000.00. (Plaintiff's Exhibit #4; Transcript, page 9, lines 13-25; page 10, lines 1-18.) At trial, both parties testified Glade Andersen had made more money in prior years but had chosen to slow down somewhat in recent years. (Transcript, page 10, lines 5-10; page 58, lines 17-25; page 82, lines 3-13.) Glade Andersen testified his current gross income to be approximately \$2,160.75 per month. (Transcript, page 59, lines 1-25.) Gay Andersen testified her husband historically received a bonus in March of each year, but was not sure he would get one in 1987 due to the recent takeover of the company. (Transcript, page 88, lines 17-25; page 89, line 1.)

5. During their marriage, Gay Andersen was a homemaker. In addition to raising the four children and providing for Glade Andersen and maintaining the home, in recent years Gay Andersen has been actively involved in the lives of her grandchildren. (Transcript, page 8, lines 17-23; page 24, lines 13-25; page 25, lines 1-6; page 33, lines 4-25; page 34, lines 1-13; page 83, lines 23-25; page 84, lines 1-16; page 89, lines 2-25; page 90, line 1.)

6. Gay Andersen's only employment experience during her nearly 34-year marriage was seven years as an on-call school lunch cook. Gay Andersen never had full-time employment. At most, the school lunch job is a 5-hour per day job. In 1984 Gay Andersen made \$52.23, in 1985 \$320.83, and in 1986 \$1,153.40. At trial in March, 1987, Gay Andersen testified she had made a total of \$290.00 in 1987. (Plaintiff's Exhibit #5; Transcript, page 6, lines 7-25; page 7; page 8, lines 1-16; page 10, lines 12-18; page 41, lines 10-13.)

7. Though a high school graduate in good health with a desire to work, Gay Anderson testified she had no readily employable skills. Gay Andersen testified at trial that she could not type or take shorthand and does not have skills in the medical area. (Transcript, page 31; page 32, lines 1-2; page 87, lines 23-25.) Gay Andersen testified that she very much needed benefits such as insurance and retirement for the future and medical insurance for the present. (Transcript, page 31, lines 18-25; page 32, lines 1-2.) She testified she had no idea during her 33 years of marriage that she would have to find a job. (Transcript, page 35, lines 8-11.) Gay Andersen testified her only job offer, other than the on-call lunch work job, after applying to numerous employers, was for less than \$4.00 per hour, was part-time, and included no benefits. (Transcript, page 38, lines 23-25; page 39, lines 1-25; page 40, lines 1-11.) Indicating a strong desire to find fruitful employment, Gay Andersen testified of a desire to enroll in business school at

Bridgerland Vocational College. She testified the cost would be \$284.00 per quarter tuition with another \$90.00 for books. The program would last approximately one year. In that training Gay Andersen testified she would learn "typing, word processing, shorthand, accounting, bookkeeping. It would give [her] the full scope." (Transcript, page 32, lines 3-25; page 33, lines 1-3; page 40, lines 12-25; page 41, lines 1-15.) Gay Andersen testified that even with the training she desired, and assuming she was able to find a full-time job at all, she would not make the same kind of money as her husband. (Transcript, page 38, lines 14-18.)

8. Gay Andersen testified to the trial court that her monthly expenses were between \$875.45 and \$915.45 per month. Plaintiff's Exhibit #3 was presented to the court and received as a summary of Gay Andersen's testimony on her monthly expenses. There was no house or rental payment included since the house was paid for and she was living in it. An allocation for taxes and insurance and repairs was added. No marital debts were included except the \$25.00 per month payment on the J. C. Penney debt of \$148.00. (Plaintiff's Exhibit #3; Transcript, page 28, lines 7-25; page 29, lines 1-18.)

9. Glade Andersen testified at trial that his monthly expenses were over \$1,800.00. Included in that amount was some \$485.00 for installment loans. Also included was rent and utilities in excess of \$570.00 for a 3-bedroom show home he was sharing with another woman. Though the testimony was disputed on

how much of the other woman's expenses were included with Glade Andersen's, Glade Andersen did admit the other woman was not employed and only received an unemployment check. (Defendant's Exhibit #15; Transcript, page 79, lines 12-25; page 80; page 81, lines 1-7; page 86, lines 3-11.)

10. Gay Andersen and Glade Andersen purchased their home at 58 South 3rd East in Hyrum, Utah in 1968. Some improvements were needed at the time of trial, particularly a furnace which would cost \$1,800.00 to \$2,500.00. The last mortgage payment on the home was made in 1985. The value of the home was stipulated at trial to be \$46,000.00, the amount showing on an appraisal commissioned by Gay Andersen. (Defendant's Exhibit #13; Transcript, page 4, lines 21-25; page 5; page 6, lines 1-6; page 49, lines 20-25; page 50, lines 1-12); page 66, lines 22-23.) At trial, Gay Andersen expressed her desire to keep the home and her considerable affection for the home:

Well, when Glade left he said it was mine and it's a lovely old home. I love it. I loved it since the moment I walked through the door. Everything in there is my home. My family loves it. My grandchildren love it. In fact, years before when we have talked of selling it and getting something smaller, the kids say don't ever give up this home, mom and dad. We want you to at least let us have a chance at it. Everybody loves it.

(Transcript, page 33, lines 8-16.) Glade Andersen testified he desired the home sold, equity split, and suggested Gay Andersen move into a trailer home. (Transcript, page 41, lines 16-25; page 42, lines 1-25; page 43, lines 1-9; page 49, lines 20-25;

pages 50-53; page 54, lines 1-5; page 75, lines 4-25; page 76, lines 1-5; page 89, lines 11-25; page 90, line 1.)

11. In 1983 the parties (the fund was in Glade Andersen's name) rolled over their profit sharing and retirement fund interest in the E. A. Miller & Sons Packing Co., Inc. profit sharing and retirement fund. Some of the money was retained and spent by the parties in 1983. \$7,500.00 of the money was rolled over into an IRA. At the time of the parties' separation, there was some \$8,340.76 in the IRA. (Plaintiff's Exhibit #7; page 13, lines 15-23; page 378, lines 4-11.) At trial, Gay Andersen testified the money was in the IRA as "a retirement to build on for us." A letter from Zions First National Bank was presented as an exhibit showing the IRA was cashed by Glade Andersen in September and October of 1986. (Plaintiff's Exhibit #8; Transcript, page 14, lines 2-25; page 15, lines 1-5; page 17, lines 23-25; page 18, lines 1-3.) The trial court awarded Gay Andersen "One-half of the IRA" though the account did not exist at the time of trial. (Ibid.; Memorandum Decision, page 3; Decree of Divorce, numbered paragraph 4.A.)

12. The parties testified that there was some \$3,700.00 plus in a fully vested E. A. Miller profit sharing account. The trial court awarded one-half of said fund to Gay Andersen in accordance with the Woodward formula. Gay Andersen does not appeal this award.

13. At the time of trial, the parties had two life insurance policies. The first policy had a \$10,000.00 policy on

the life of Glade Andersen. That policy was provided by Glade Andersen's employer. The second policy was purchased in 1984 from Aetna Life Insurance, Policy No. U 1 1276 105; date of issue October 12, 1984. The specified amount on the policy was \$58,400.00. The policy was purchased by the parties to aid in their retirement. At trial, Gay Andersen requested that Glade Andersen be required to maintain both of the above policies in full force and effect and to keep the premiums current and to keep the name of Gay Andersen or rename Gay Andersen, as the case may be, as the sole beneficiary thereon. (Plaintiff's Exhibits #11 and #9 respectively; Transcript, page 15, lines 23-25; pages 16-17; page 18, lines 1-3; page 35, lines 21-25; page 36, lines 1-6.) Glade Andersen testified that he would be willing to keep fifty or sixty thousand dollars of life insurance on his life with Gay Andersen as beneficiary. (Transcript, page 78, lines 17-25; page 79, lines 1-4.) The trial court made no mention in its final papers of this life insurance/retirement plan.

14. There was also a \$5,000.00 policy through Aetna on Gay Andersen's life which was raised at trial. The premium, approximately \$12.00 per month, was taken out of Glade Andersen's check. Gay Andersen testified she desired that policy be kept in place by Glade Andersen. (Transcript, page 21, lines 21-25; page 22, lines 1-8; page 35, lines 21-25; page 36, lines 1-6.) The trial court made no mention in its final papers of this insurance either.

15. At trial, an appraisal of the parties' personal property was presented the trial court. The trial court also heard testimony on the value of the parties' two vehicles. Four facts need to be mentioned:

(a) In its Memorandum Decision and Findings, the trial court adopted the appraiser's value and then went on and "observe[d] that such values are approximately double the value placed on said property by Plaintiff." (Memorandum Decision, page 2; Findings of Fact, numbered paragraph 11.) The trial court made this findings in spite of the fact that the appraiser was retained by Plaintiff Gay Andersen, the appraisal was presented by exhibit by Gay Andersen, and Gay Andersen testified she agreed with the appraiser's values at trial. (Plaintiff's Exhibit #6; Transcript, page 10, lines 19-25; page 11, lines 1-25.) With the exception of one item, Glade Andersen also agreed to the Palmer appraisal (Transcript, page 54, lines 11-25.)

(b) The trial court awarded Gay Andersen the Oldsmobile Cutlass subject to the debt thereon and placed the net value at \$350.00. (Memorandum Decision, page 3; Decree of Divorce, numbered paragraph 4.A.) Gay Andersen testified the value of the car to be \$2,200.00 to \$2,500.00. (Transcript, page 18, lines 8-15.) Glade Andersen testified that though the car was valued at \$3,800.00 a year and a half earlier, the low blue book of \$1,800.00 and high of \$2,700.00 was "right." (Transcript, page 65, lines 16-25; page 66, line 1.) The Zions Bank debt against the car (the loan was not made to purchase the

car, but to carpet and remodel the home) was \$2,762.03 as of the date of trial. (Transcript, page 23; page 24, lines 1-3.)

\$2,762.03 plus the \$350.00 net value deduced by the trial court places the trial court's valuation of the car at \$3,112.03.

(c) The monthly payment on the \$2,762.03 Zions Bank loan which has the car as security was \$148.17. (Defendant's Exhibit #15.) By placing the debt on Gay Andersen's side of the ledger, her \$874.45 to \$915.45 of monthly expenses was increased by \$148.17 and Glade Andersen's \$1,800.00 of monthly expenses was decreased by \$148.17.

(d) The trial court awarded Glade Andersen the trailer though Gay Andersen testified she had already sold it. (Plaintiff's Exhibit #10; Transcript, page 19, lines 7-25; page 20.)

16. After a stipulation to the reasonableness of the attorney fees, Gay Andersen proffered fees of \$1,800.00 and Glade Andersen proffered fees of \$2,600.00 from which \$1,500.00 to \$2,000.00 was claimed as reasonable with the rest representing travel time. (Transcript, page 29, lines 19-25; page 30, lines 1-17; page 74, lines 2-12.) Gay Andersen further testified she did not have the means to pay her attorney fees. (Transcript, page 30, lines 15-17.)

17. Glade Andersen left the family home on August 5, 1986 and moved with another woman to a home in Brigham City, Utah. (Transcript, page 24, lines 19-25; page 25, lines 1-6.) Gay Andersen testified she had \$100.00 with her on August 5th and

that Glade Andersen deposited \$200.00 into their joint account on August 15. (Transcript, page 25, lines 7-25.) On September 26, 1986, Gay Andersen filed the Complaint for Divorce, a Motion for Order to Show Cause, Affidavit, and Order to Show Cause.

(Record, pages 1-21.) It was between the time Glade Andersen left and the Order to Show Cause was scheduled and Glade Andersen finally paid \$500.00 toward Gay Andersen's support that Gay Andersen sold the trailer for \$1,000.00. (Transcript, page 19, lines 7-25; page 20, lines 1-14; page 25, lines 19-25.) The Temporary Order provided that Glade Andersen pay to Gay Andersen \$300.00 per month temporary alimony plus the utilities on the home (excepting the phone bill, as well as all of the marital debts (excluding J. C. Penney and The Bon). (Record, pages 54-56.) The Decree of Divorce awarded Gay Andersen judgment for \$400.00 against Glade Andersen for temporary alimony owed but not paid on March 13, 1987, the date of the trial. (Decree of Divorce, numbered paragraph 8.)

SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT

1. The trial court's award of \$300.00 per month alimony to Gay Andersen until such time as Gay Andersen finishes school or is employed full-time is an abuse of discretion. Given the duration of the parties' marriage, the disparity of income and income earning potential, experience in the work place, family arrangement, age, relative skills, property, monetary needs, and reasonable expectations, and given the Utah Supreme Court and this Court's mandate that an alimony award "as far as possible,

equalize the parties' respective standards of living and maintain them at a level as close as possible to the standard of living enjoyed during the marriage," the trial court's award of alimony is grossly inadequate in this case. Not only did the trial court not satisfy the basic purpose of alimony set out in Utah case law, the trial court further abused its discretion in failing to make appropriate findings as to the parties' income and ability to earn income and Gay Andersen's needs. The trial court further abused its discretion in requiring the family home be sold in 1989 given the same factors just mentioned and given the purpose of property awards which is to "best serve the needs of the parties" and to allow the parties "to pursue their separate lives." Again, not only was the purpose of a property settlement not met in this case, but the trial court also failed to make findings as to how the needs of the parties would be met and how the parties would be able to go forward separately if the home was sold and, more specifically, how Gay Andersen's needs and abilities would be met by the sale of the home.

2. The trial court failed to specify a set amount in its award of the IRA in spite of the fact that it was cashed by Glade Andersen before the trial. Also, the trial court valued the parties' car at an amount in excess of the undisputed testimony at trial. There being inadequate findings on these points, the trial court abused its discretion.

3. The trial court did not order or even mention an agreement at trial by Glade Andersen that he carry substantial

insurance on his life with Gay Andersen as sole beneficiary. The request and agreement were both reasonable and necessary on the facts of this case and the trial court abused its discretion in failing to make any finding or order thereon. The trial court further abused its discretion in failing to rule on Gay Andersen's request that the insurance on her life be maintained by Glade Andersen.

4. The \$1,800.00 attorney fees requested by Gay Andersen and stipulated to by the parties as reasonable should have been awarded given Gay Andersen's need and Glade Andersen's income and earning potential. The trial court abused its discretion in refusing the request and in making no findings thereon except to order both to pay their own fees and costs.

Gay Andersen further requests her reasonable attorney fees and costs on this appeal given her ongoing need and Glade Andersen's ongoing income and earning potential.

ARGUMENT

I

GAY ANDERSEN IS ENTITLED TO SUBSTANTIAL ALIMONY FOR AN EXTENDED PERIOD AND THE TRIAL COURT ABUSED ITS DISCRETION IN FAILING TO SO PROVIDE.

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