1987

Gay Andersen v. Glade C. Andersen : Brief of Respondent

Utah Court of Appeals

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

This is a divorce case.

COURSE OF PROCEEDINGS

Gay Andersen filed a Complaint for divorce on September 26, 1986. An Order to Show Cause was also signed by the court on September 26, 1986. On October 16, 1986, Glade Andersen filed an Answer and Counterclaim.

On October 27, 1986, a hearing on Gay Andersen's Order to Show Cause was held before Judge VeNoy Christoffersen of the First Judicial District. A Temporary Order was signed by Judge Christoffersen on December 1, 1986, and entered on December 3, 1986.

Trial was held on March 13, 1987, before Judge Call. Judge Call signed his Memorandum Decision on May 5, 1987. The Memorandum Decision was entered on May 11, 1987.

The Findings of Fact and Conclusions of Law and Decree of Divorce were signed by Judge Call on July 15, 1987, and were entered July 16, 1987.

Gay Andersen filed her appeal on August 10, 1987.

DISPOSITION AT TRIAL COURT

Based upon the evidence and testimony adduced at the trial, the Court entered Findings of Fact, Conclusions of Law and a Decree of Divorce.

STATEMENT OF FACTS

1. Glade Andersen and Gay Andersen were married on July 22, 1953. (Transcript, page 3, line 22.)

2. During the course of the marriage, the parties had four children, all of whom are adults and emancipated from the household. (Transcript, page 3, line 23-page 4, line 9.)

3. The Plaintiff, Gay Andersen, is presently 51 years of age and the Defendant, Glade Andersen, is presently 50 years of age. (Transcript, page 3, lines 12-17.)

4. The Appellant, Gay Andersen, had been employed during the marriage for approximately 7 years as a part-time school lunch cook. (Transcript, page 6, lines 7-1.) Gay Andersen had made \$52.23 in 1984, \$320.83 in 1985, and \$1,153.40 in 1986. (Transcript, page 7, lines 11-20.) The Plaintiff, Gay Andersen, testified that she was an able-bodied individual, capable of working full time and that her health was good. (Transcript, page 31, lines 23-page 32, line 2; page 41, lines 10-13.)

5. Since the time of separation, Gay Andersen had turned down a job for \$3.95 per hour because it did not offer benefits and because she thought she would have to leave there eventually.

(Transcript, page 39, line 6-page 40, line 6.) Gay Andersen testified that she was enrolled in a business school which would take nine to ten months to complete. During that time, she would receive training in typing, word processing, shorthand, accounting and bookkeeping. She testified that her prospects of employment were especially good because of the job placement opportunities offered by the school. (Transcript, page 32, line 4-page 33, line 3.)

6. The Defendant, Glade Andersen, completed 10 years of formal education and has been a truck driver for 31 years. (Transcript, page 46, line 21-page 47, line 3.) During the past 7 or 8 years, he has worked for Miller Bros. Company in Hyrum, Utah. (Transcript, page 47, lines 6-7.) During 1984, Glade Andersen made \$29,319.00 and in 1985, made \$28,189.00 and in 1986 made approximately \$28,000.00. (Transcript, page 9, lines 19-24; page 58, lines 17-22.)

7. The Defendant, Glade Andersen, testified that for approximately 8 years, the Plaintiff Gay Andersen's mother lived with them and during that time, the Plaintiff withdrew her love and affection from the Defendant, making the continuation of the marriage impossible. (Transcript, page 47, line 14-page 48, line 16.)

8. Gay Andersen testified in court that her monthly expenses were between \$875.45 to \$915.45 (Plaintiff's Exhibit

#3). Gay Andersen testified that while she was attending school, she could work part-time and still accomplish all of the objectives that she wanted to accomplish with regard to her education. (Transcript, page 41, lines 2-9.)

9. Glade Andersen testified at trial that his monthly gross income was \$2,160.75. (Defendant's Exhibit #15.) From that amount, the following deductions were made: State and Federal income taxes of \$365.60, FICA in the amount of \$147.77 and medical insurance and expenses in at least the amount of \$50.00 per month. Mr. Andersen testified that his life insurance premiums were \$92.00 a month and that the payment on the \$2,000.00 loan taken out by the parties to pay bills was \$97.82 and was taken directly out of his check. The net take-home monies that Mr. Andersen had after the deductions outlined above was \$1,308.53. (Defendant's Exhibit #15; Transcript, page 59, line 1-page 62, line 16.)

10. Glade Andersen testified to a number of debts and obligations that the parties had incurred during the course of the marriage. There was an obligation owing to Zions Bank on a Visa card in the amount of \$1,985.00 with a monthly payment of \$60.00 that was incurred by Mrs. Andersen. Mr. Andersen was unsure as to the purpose for which Mrs. Andersen had incurred the debt. (Defendant's Exhibit #15; Transcript, page 62, line 25-page 63, line 7.) The parties incurred another obligation to

Zions Bank for a wedding of one of the daughters in the amount of \$286.46; (Transcript, page 63, lines 18-25.) The parties incurred another obligation to Zions Bank in the amount of \$2,762.02 for remodeling the bedrooms and for carpet. The Zions obligation is secured by one of the automobiles. The monthly payment on that obligation was \$148.17. (Defendant's Exhibit #15; transcript, page 64, lines 1-18.) The parties had an obligation to ZCMI in the amount of \$481.00 incurred by Mrs. Andersen with payments of \$70.00 per month. (Transcript, page 64, lines 18-23.) The parties owed CitiBank \$433.69. (Transcript, page 64, line 24-page 65, line 2.) Mrs. Andersen had incurred an obligation to the chiropractor in the amount of \$248.94 payable at \$35.00 per month. (Transcript, page 65, lines 4-11.) Mr. Andersen testified that the total amount of monthly installments he was required to pay was \$485.05. (Defendant's Exhibit #15.)

11. In addition to the debts and obligations, Mr. Andersen testified he needed \$250.00 a month for food based upon the fact that he has two meals, five days a week on the road, for which he is not compensated and generally spends no less than \$4.00 each. (Transcript, page 72, lines 2-14.) Mr. Andersen testified that \$90.00 for the remainder of the meals per month at home was reasonable. (Transcript, page 72, lines 16-18.) Mr. Andersen testified he was spending \$450.00 rent together with utilities of

\$120.00 per month, telephone of \$25.00, laundry and cleaning \$20.00, clothing \$50.00, medical and dental \$45.00, entertainment \$50.00, and incidentals of \$100.00. Finally Mr. Andersen testified that he spent \$180.00 in auto expense. (Transcript, page 72, line 19-page 73, line 13.) In essence, Mr. Andersen had \$1,800.00 of debts, obligations and monthly living expenses to meet with \$1,300.00 of net income.

12. The parties purchased their home in Hyrum, Utah, in approximately 1968. The home was purchased as an old home and the parties made improvements to the home. The home was paid off in 1985. The parties stipulated, based upon an appraisal that the value of the home was \$46,000.00. (Defendant's Exhibit #13.) Mr. Andersen testified that the home should be sold immediately and the proceeds divided because neither of the parties could maintain the home and the home would depreciate. Specifically, in addition to the furnace and the bathroom that had to be repaired, the outside needed extensive work. Mr. Andersen testified that the wood on the outside of the home actually had to be replaced because of warping and disfigurement. Further, he testified that unless the upkeep was in fact maintained on the home, in his opinion, the value of the home would depreciate greatly. (Transcript, page 52, line 8-page 53, line 4.) Mr. Andersen testified that Gay Andersen had a sister in Hyrum who lived in a trailer home and inasmuch as the home represented the

major asset of the marriage, the home could be sold and both parties could buy a trailer home or some kind of condominium unit in which to reside. Mr. Andersen testified that he had no ability to buy a home or other facility to live in because of his inability to qualify for a loan. (Transcript, page 53, line 5-page 54, line 5.)

13. In approximately 1983, Glade Andersen received from his work \$17,000.00 because the employer phased out a retirement program. That \$17,000.00 was accumulated by Mr. Andersen over 17 years. Glade Andersen testified that approximately \$10,000.00 of it went into the home for remodeling and the other \$7,000.00 was put in the bank. It was established that approximately \$7,500.00 of the money was rolled over into an IRA. The record further established that in September a distribution was made to Mr. Andersen in the sum of \$4,127.95 and a transfer of funds in the amount of \$4,000.00 was made to another certificate in the Brigham City office of Zions First National Bank. Mr. Andersen testified at court that there was approximately \$3,350.51 left. The remaining \$4,650.00 went to pay the alimony awarded under the terms of the Temporary Order and the living expenses outlined above. (Plaintiff's Exhibit #8; transcript, page 66, line 14-page 68, line 6.)

14. Both the Plaintiff and Defendant testified that there was some \$3,700.00 invested in E. A. Miller profit sharing

account. The court awarded each party one-half of said fund.

15. At the time of trial, there were two life insurance policies that were discussed by the parties. The insurance policies were paid for by the parties. The court did not make any order as it relates to the life insurance. Mr. Andersen testified that he could not afford to maintain the life insurance for the simple reason that it was through his employer and since they had changed companies, he was unsure as to what was going to happen with the life insurance. Further, Mr. Andersen said that the extra \$100.00 a month to pay premiums was simply not feasible for him in light of the court ordered obligations. (Transcript, page 68, lines 11-21.)

16. The court heard testimony from each of the parties as to the value of various items of personal property. The parties then stipulated to an appraisal of the personal property by SusAnn Palmer and both agreed that the values would be accepted for purposes of trial. (Plaintiff's Exhibit #6; transcript, page 12, lines 10-15.) Based upon the appraisal of the items by the expert, the court divided the personal property between the parties, awarding Gay Andersen \$3,438.00 worth of personal property and the Defendant \$3,785.00. (R. 102-103.)

17. As it relates to the personal property issue, the Plaintiff, Gay Andersen, without the permission of Glade Andersen, sold a trailer of the parties appraised at \$1,800.00

for only \$1,000.00. Gay Andersen kept the money and did not give any part of it to Mr. Andersen. (Transcript, page 70, line 10-page 71, line 7.)

18. Based upon a stipulation between the parties, each of the attorneys proffered their attorney's fees. Gay Andersen proffered fees of \$1,800.00 and the Defendant, Glade Andersen, proffered fees of \$2,600.00. (Transcript, page 29, lines 19-25; page 30, lines 1-17; page 74, lines 2-12.)

SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT

The trial court's award of \$300.00 per month alimony to Gay Andersen until such time as Gay Andersen finishes school or is employed full time is a proper Order and one that is based upon the evidence and testimony induced at the time of hearing. The trial court made explicit findings as to the duration of the marriage, the income and expenses of both parties and concluded that there was insufficient income to meet the living expenses claimed by each of the parties and provide monies for the payment of the debts accumulated for the Plaintiff's chiropractor, the daughter's wedding, home improvements, Visa charge accounts, among others. Based upon that, the court found that the home should be used by the Plaintiff, Gay Andersen, subject to the payment of taxes and insurance for a period ending April 1, 1989, at which time the home should be sold and the net proceeds divided evenly between the parties. The court awarded, as

alimony, the sum of \$300.00 until further order of the court or until such time as the Plaintiff completes her schooling or becomes employed on a full time basis. With that ruling, the court expressly recognized and found that the Defendant would have only \$843.00 of net income from which to pay the \$300.00 per month alimony and to pay his own living expenses while the Plaintiff appeared to have the \$300.00 alimony, her \$200.00 earnings and virtually free rent. Considering those various items, the trial court correctly concluded that each party could not be maintained on less than was provided under the terms of the Decree of Divorce and further, that the Decree of Divorce nearly, as possible, split the on-going monies to allow each of them to maintain an acceptable lifestyle.

The court awarded each of the parties one-half of the IRA account and one-half of the interest in the Defendant's pension plan. The court heard testimony that the original amount in the IRA had been depleted in order to pay alimony and on-going monthly living expenses. Therefore, the court's order that one-half of the IRA at the time of trial should be awarded to each parties was an entirely appropriate order.

As it relates to the issue of life insurance, Glade Andersen testified that it was costing him \$100.00 a month to maintain life insurance and that given the financial constraints of the divorce, it was impossible for him to continue that life

insurance. Further, Mr. Andersen testified that the insurance was changing due to his employment and he was unsure as to what policies would be available in the future. Given the tight financial constraints on the parties and the uncertainty as to the life insurance programs that would be available in the future, the court properly acted in not requiring Mr. Andersen to maintain any life insurance.

The Defendant incurred substantially more attorney's fees than the Plaintiff. The court found, given the equities of the situation, that each side should pay their own costs and attorney's fees and such order was appropriate under the circumstances.

ARGUMENT

POINT I

APPELLANT MUST ESTABLISH A SHOWING OF CLEAR AND PREJUDICIAL ABUSE OF DISCRETION ON THE PART OF THE TRIAL COURT

The Supreme Court has ruled consistently as to the standard of review in alimony cases. A clear statement as to the test on appeal was set out in Paffel vs. Paffel, 732 P.2d 96 (Utah 1986). The Supreme Court stated that:

The purpose of such support is to enable the receiving spouse to maintain, as nearly as possible, the standard of living enjoyed during the marriage and to prevent the spouse from becoming a public charge. In an action for divorce, the trial court has considerable discretion to provide for spousal support, and this Court will not interfere with the trial court's award of such support in a divorce

proceeding absent a showing of a clear and prejudicial abuse of discretion.

Id. at 100.

The Court in Paffel, supra, then noted the elements that must be properly considered by the trial court in determining the alimony issue. The Court noted that:

In deciding whether or not to award spousal support and, if so, in what amount, the trial court must consider the financial condition and needs of the spouse claiming support, the ability of that spouse to provide sufficient income for him or herself, and the ability of the responding spouse to provide the support. Failure to consider these factors constitutes an abuse of discretion.

Id. at 100-101.

The Court of Appeals again endorsed that test in Eames vs. Eames, 735 P.2d 395 (Utah App. 1987). In that case, the Court was faced with a marriage of 30 years with three children. At the time of trial, the youngest child was 18 years of age, the Plaintiff was employed and was making approximately \$10,000.00 per year and the Defendant was earning approximately \$34,000.00 per year. The Plaintiff was given the right to live in the home until February 1, 1989, or until it was sold by the agreement of the parties. Plaintiff was awarded alimony in the sum of \$450.00 per month as long as the 18 year old was successfully pursuing a full-time college education, lived in the family home, remained single, or reached the age of 21. Alimony was then reduced to \$300.00 per month and would remain so until the Plaintiff reached

the age of 65 years. At that time, alimony would terminate. Id. at 396-97. It is interesting to note that the Eames, supra case involves a decision by Judge Omer J. Call, the same District Court Judge involved in this matter and involves the same law firm, representing the Plaintiff, who was the recipient of the alimony award. In reviewing that decision, the Court once again recited the purpose of alimony which is to enable the receiving spouse to maintain as nearly as possible the standard of living enjoyed during the marriage and to prevent the spouse from public charge. The Court expressly noted that:

The Appellant Court should not interfere with such award without a showing of a 'clear and prejudicial abuse of discretion.'

Id. at 397.

The Appellant Court then went on to state as follows:

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